
CAMPUS  BUILDING  INVENTORY:
CHRONOLOGY  AND  HISTORY

YEAR BLDG  # NAME EVENT  SUMMARY OTHER

1903 property Western State Normal School 20 acres on and around Prospect Hill donated by the 
city of Kalamazoo.

1904

1905 1 Administration Building As built, 34,950 square feet. First administration building, also housed first library: 
later, home to College of Business.  

Center section of East Hall Architect:  E. W. Arnold Name changed to East hall in 1952.   
Groundbreaking 7-9-1904;  occupied 9-1-1905,      

dedicated 11-23-1905. Listed with National Register in 1978. 

1906
1907

1908 1 Gymnasium and Classroom 
Annex As built, 39,038 square feet. Renamed Ladies' Gymnasium after Men's Gymnasium 

(Oakland Gym) constructed in 1925.   
North section of East Hall Architect:  E. W. Arnold Renamed East Hall in 1952.

Dedicated 6-22-1908.  Listed with National Register in 1978.

1909 1 Training School As built, 35,081 square feet. Home to Training School / University School and High 
School until 1969. 

South section of East Hall  Architect:  E. W. Arnold.  Building renamed East Hall in 1952.  
Opened 9-9-1909.  Listed with National Register in 1978.
Remodeled 1962.  

1910
1911
1912
1913

1914  - Athletic Field Construction of first athletic field, on "west side of 
railroad tracks, redirecting Arcadia Creek".  

Description from "The First Fifty Years" by James O. 
Knauss.

1915 4 Science Building 42,687 square feet.  Also known as West Hall.
Architect:  E. W. Arnold

22 Greenhouse Architect:  E. W. Arnold?

11 Heating Plant 6,660 square feet.  
Also known as Garage, Electronics Shop, Power Plant, 

Physical Plant Annex, Upholstery Shop, Industrial 
Design Shop.

Architect:  E. W. Arnold.
1916

1917 8 Eames Mill Acquired to house Manual Arts shops. Also known as The PlayHouse, location of theatre and 
arts productions, from 1921 to 1942.

 Condemned and razed in 1942.
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1918 14 Barracks Building. Built to house Student Army Training Corps in WWI; 
later remodeled for classrooms.  Also known as Temporary Classroom Building.

Approximately 8,000 square feet.  
Demolished in 1948.

1919
1920

1921 13 Manual Arts Building 23,595 square feet. Also known as Manual Training Building and Industrial 
Arts Building.  

Architect:  Louis Kamper? Now part of Bldg #21, Physical Plant.
1922 property Kleinstuck Preserve Donation of 47.5 acres Caroline Klienstuck.

1923  - Temporary buildings Temporary wooden classroom buildings and 
'fieldhouse' built south of Men's Gymnasium.

Various small buildings built on the east side of 
Oakland Drive around 1923.

1924 3 Library Building 33,948 square feet.    Western's 2nd library; first was located in 
Administration Building.

Architects:  Henry H. Turner and Victor E. Thebaud. Later known as Natural Sciences Building, then 
College of Business.

Remodeled 1958; L. C. Kingscott and Assoc.
1925 6 Men's Gymnasium 60,163 square feet.    Also known as Oakland Gymnasium.

Architects:  Henry H. Turner and Victor E. Thebaud.

Demolished in 2001 - façade saved as east entrance 
of Seelye Athletic Center.

1926
1927

1928  - Temporary buildings Two wooden buildings and a "fieldhouse" built south 
of the Men's Gymnasium in 1928.

1929
1930
1931
1932
1933
1934
1935
1936
1937
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1938 10 Walwood Union and Dormitory 
for Women 63,237 square feet.    Named for Western President Dwight B. Waldo and 

Professor Leslie H. Wood.  

Architects:  Malcomson, Fowler and Hammond, Inc. Later called Walwood Hall.                 

Renovated 1992; Hobbs & Black Assoc., Inc.
Originally student union and women's residence hall; 
later men's residence hall; later, fraternity house and 

art studios just prior to 1992 renovation.

 - Temporary buildings Demolished prior to construction of Waldo Stadium.

1939 5 Health and Personnel Building 20,849 square feet.  Later called Speech and Hearing Center.
Architect:  Lewis J. Sarvis.

7 Vandercook Hall 45,219 square feet.  Named after the 'Father of Western', State 
Representative Henry B. Vandercook of Grand Rapids.

Architects:  Malcomson, Fowler and Hammond, Inc.

15 Waldo Stadium 15,000 seats.        Originally built on land re-claimed from swamp.  
Original designers:  The Osborn Engineering Co. Named after first president Dwight B. Waldo.

1975 renovation by Osborn Engineering, with Kellogg 
& Kiefer, Architects. 1975:  total of 25,000 seats, AstroTurf installed.

Remodeled 1989. 1989:  total of 30,000 seats; stadium lights added.
Substation remodel in 1994; Eckert-Wordell 

Architects.
1996 (John Gill Press Box), 1998 (Bill Brown Alumni 

Center); Tower Pinkster Titus Architects
1992:  PAT turf installed.                         

1996 total of 36,000 seats.

2003 (Seelye Athletic Center);  Kalleward 
Construction, contractor, with Eckert-Wordell 

Architects.
NexTurf installed in 2001.

16 Hyames Field and grandstand 5,338 square feet.  Structures designed by The 
Osborn Engineering Co.

Named after Judson A Hyames, Western baseball 
coach and Director of Physical Education and 

Athletics.
Renovation 2010.                             

Design-Build:  Kalleward Group 2008:  renamed Robert J. Bobb Stadium

1940 8 Spindler Hall 50,600 square feet.   Named for Lavina Spindler, teacher and Dean of 
Women.

Architects:  Malcomson, Fowler & Hammond. Inc.
 Remodeled 1991, Hobbs & Black Assoc., Inc.
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1941 12 Mechanical Trades Building 23,619 square feet. Also known as Aviation Training Building.  

Architect:  Steward-Kingscott Co Named Brink Printing Services in 1980, after Lawrence 
J. Brink. 

Demolished in 2002.

1942 9 The Theatre 14,456 square feet. Also known as The Little Theatre and Oakland Recital 
Hall.

Architects:  Malcomson, Fowler & Hammond, Inc.  

Remodeled 1997; Diekema/Hamann Architects, Inc.

8 Eames Mill Eames Mill demolished.

1943 23 Walwood Place residences Acquisition of six private residences. Used for classrooms, offices, faculty residences, and 
as women's dormitories (during WWII).

1944 property West Campus expansion Acquisition of 155 acres west of the railroad tracks.

33 Presidential Residence Built in 1869.  5,978 sq. ft. Purchased in 1944.  Also known as The Oaklands.
 Remodeled in the 1970's.

24 ROTC Building 1947 temporary classroom building(s) built from WWII 
surplus. Later called Distributive Education Building

25 Arcadia Brook Clubhouse Originally built in 1925.    Purchased along with golf course in westward 
expansion of campus.  

Remodeled in 1948; M.C.J. Billingham. Initially used for faculty dining room.

Demolished in 1992 for Gary Center expansion. Later known as Arcadia Cafeteria and Safety and 
Security Building.

1945 50 Kanley Park
Converted to athletics facility in 1974; new running 
track constructed to replace cinder track in Waldo 

Stadium.  New press box 1992-93; 2,750 square feet.
Named after Western graduate Wiliam Kanley.

Called Kanley Track in 1974.
1946

1947 1 Training School Annex 2,637 square feet.  Connection between Training 
School and Administration Building.

Prior to this an uncovered bridge connected the main 
floors of the two buildings.

17, 18, 19 Classroom buildings Constructed in 1947-48 from WWII surplus.   
Demolished at various times.

Psychology Research Building 
designated #19.

Psychology Research Building; 7,015 square feet; 
Kingscott.

Variously called English Hall, Business Education 
Building, Farm Shop Building, Music Building, Speech 

and Dramatics Building, Physical Education Annex 
(included tennis courts) and Psychology Research 

Building.
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21 Maintenance Building Addition to Manual Arts Building.   Also known as Physical Plant.
1954 addition of garage and offices.

Total addition of 21,200 square feet; Ralph R. Calder, 
architect. 

Total building 44,795 square feet.
64 South Pump House 614 square feet.  

Architect: Ralph R. Calder?; Cummins and Barnard 
(?), contractor.

1948 25 Arcadia Brook / Faculty Dining 
Room Remodeled.

26 Hillside Apartments - East and 
West ? Sq. ft. 32 apartments units for faculty.  

Architect:  L. C. Kingscott and Assoc.  Later used for faculty offices.
Demolished in 1992 for Gary Center expansion.

28 Smith Burnham and Ernest 
Burnham Residence Halls 200,730 square feet total. First residence halls and 2nd building(s) on West 

Campus.
 Architect:  Ralph R. Calder. Originally men's residence halls.

1949 27 McCracken Hall Original building 85,144 square feet. First classroom building on West Campus.
Architects:  Malcomson, Fowler & Hammond, Inc. Named for William McCracken
Paper Science program addition in 1959; 17,628 

square feet; Ralph R. Calder. 
West wing addition in 1968; 75,235 square feet; 

Kingscott and Assoc. 
Paper Science (pilot plant) addition in 1985; 8.950 

square feet; Kingscott and Assoc. 
Total building 185,967 square feet.

29 Harper Maybee Music Hall 29,733 square feet. Named after Harper C. Maybee.  

Architect:  Ralph R. Calder. Later used for Academic Computer Center, after fine 
arts programs moved into Dalton Center in 1982.

 Demolished 1988 before construction of University 
Computing Center.

1950 30 Blanche Draper and Lydia 
Siedschlag Halls Total 167,188 square feet Originally women's residence halls (first on West 

Campus).
Architect:  Ralph R. Calder

1951 31 Kanley Memorial Chapel 11,393 square feet. Named for Western graduate William Kanley.
 Architect:  Ralph R. Calder.

 - Maintenance Storage Building ? per Archive records
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1952 32 Administration Building 84,700 square feet. Renamed Seibert Administration Building in 1978 after 
Russel H. Seibert.

  Architect:  Ralph R. Calder. Dedicated on 1-20-78.
1953 14 Barracks Building Demolished.

1954 21 Physical Plant
Addition of 21,200 square feet to Maintenance 

Building.  Building total 44,795 square feet.   
Architect:  Ralph R. Calder.

37 Elmwood Apartments 73,600 square feet. Also known as Married Student Housing. 
units A - H  Architect:  Ralph R. Calder. Named after ?

45 Davis Hall 89,296 square feet. Named for Bertha Davis.
 Architect:  Ralph R. Calder.

46 Davis Food Commons 24,389 square feet.  Named for Bertha Davis.
Architect:  Ralph R. Calder.

1955 48 Zimmerman Hall 71,110 square feet. Named after Elizabeth T. Zimmerman.
  Architect:  Ralph R. Calder.

1956 37 Elmwood Apartments 36,800 square feet. Named after ?
units J - M  Architect:  Ralph R. Calder

49 Physical Education Building 80,000 square feet.  Architect:  Ralph R. Calder. Also known as Physical Education Center.  

Architect:  Ralph R. Calder. 
Renamed as Gary Physical Education Center after 

Mitchell J. "Mike" Gary, possibly after the 1964 
renovation.

 Addition and renovation in 1964; 75,517 square feet; 
Ralph R. Calder. 

Originally connected with Read Fieldhouse.  The two 
were not separate buildings until the 1994 renovation.

 Renovation, addition and partial demolition in 1994; 
84,590 square feet.  Architect:   Smith, Hinchman & 

Grylls Assoc., Inc. 
Renamed Student Recreation Center in 1994.

Total building 240,107 square feet.
58 Ellsworth Hall 98,348 square feet.  Named after Frank Ellsworth.

Architect:  Ralph R. Calder

1957 59 Student Center Originally 217,937 square feet. Renamed Bernhard Center in 1986-7 after John T. 
Bernhard.  

Architect:  Ralph R. Calder.
Addition in 1964; 70,240 square feet; Ralph R. 

Calder.
Addition 1989; 1,300 square feet; Robert Lee Wold & 

Assoc., Inc.
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37 Elmwood Apartments 36,800 square feet.
units N - Q   Architect:  Ralph R. Calder.

60 Henry Hall 86,105 square feet. Named after Theodore S. Henry.
 Architect:  Ralph R. Calder.

62 University Fieldhouse 85,220 square feet.
Originally connected with Physical Education Center.  
The two were not separate buildings until the 1994 

renovation.
Architect:  Ralph R. Calder. 

Addition in 1964; 8,670 square feet; Ralph R. Calder.
Renamed Read Fieldhouse, possibly after the 1964 

renovation, after Herbert W. "Buck" Read, and 
University Arena.

Addition and renovation in 1994; 20,900 square feet; 
Smith Hinchman & Grylls Assoc., Inc.  University Arena dedicated in 1994.

Total building 114,900 square feet.
63 West Campus Substation 1,082 square feet.

1958 61 Dwight B. Waldo Library 86,362 square feet. Named after Western's first president.   

Architect:  Ralph R. Calder. Rare Book Room remodeled in 1991 by Hobbs & Black
Assoc., Inc. 

Addition 1967; 70,812 square feet; Ralph R. Calder. Building dedication on April 24, 1992.

Addition and renovation 1991; 104,672 square feet; 
WBDC Group.

Total building 261,846 square feet.

1959 27 McCracken Hall Addition 17,628 square feet; Ralph R. Calder. Addition to house Paper Science program, formerly 
located in Mechanical Trades Building.

property Lee Baker Farm Acquired from the State in property transfer. Named after Lee Baker in 1983.
Orig. University Farm 276 acres Parcel includes Gibbs House and outbuildings.

130 Gibbs House Approximately 2,100 square feet.   Acquired with University Farm in State property 
transfer.

Gibbs House, Farm Barn and 
Garage Built in early to mid-1800's. Listed on National Registry in 1983.

65 Hoekje Hall 87,209 square feet.  Named after John C. Hoekje.
Architect:  Ralph R. Calder.

66 North Valley Apartments 60,628 square feet. Renamed Goldsworth Valley Apartments after John 
Goldsworth.  

units R - Z  Architect:  Ralph R. Calder. Also known as Married Student Housing.
1960 74 French Hall 68,654 square feet.  Named after Anna L. French.

Architect:  Ralph R. Calder.
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78 Aviation Classroom Facility 3,286 square feet. Aviation Mechanics and Flight Science instructional 
facility on Kilgore Road, near Kalamazoo Airport.

Architect:  ? 
Addition 1968; 17,756 square feet; Louis C. Kingscott 

Assoc., Inc.
Total Building 21, 144 square feet.

property Kiltz Farm Property transfer from State.  Originally purchased for 
Kalamazoo Psychiatric Hospital in 1930.

Located in Portage, Michigan, roughly bounded by 
Milham Road, Oakland Drive, and Romence Road; 

access and farmhouse off of Milham Road. 

Divested after fire in 1970? 250 acres. Used by Western Agricultural programs until buildings 
destroyed by fire in 1970?.

? 76 North Pump House 412 square feet Building date unknown.
1961 75 Bigelow Hall 92,654 square feet. Named for Howard E. Bigelow.

Architect:  Ralph R. Calder
1962 47 Moore Hall 71,110 square feet.  Named after Grace and Mary Moore.

Architect:  Ralph R. Calder.
36 Wood Hall 174,907 square feet. Named after Leslie H. Wood.  

  Architect:  L.C. Kingscott Assoc. Building dedication April 24, 1998.
Renovation 1998; Holabird and Root.

22 Greenhouse Demolished when Wood Hall built?

1963 73 North Valley Residence Halls 298,242 square feet.  Renamed Goldsworth Valley Residence Hall after John
Goldsworth. 

group #1 Architect:  Ralph R. Calder.  Individual units named  Ackley, Hadley, Shilling and 
Britton Halls.

1964 72 North Valley Residence Halls 281,075 square feet.  Renamed Goldsworth Valley Residence Hall after John
Goldsworth.  

group #2 Architect:  Ralph R. Calder. Individual units named Eicher, Garneau, Harvey, and 
Lefevre Halls.

39 Knollwood Building Built 1930.  Purchase of former elementary school.
11,800 square feet.  Demolished 2008.

49 Gary Center Addition; 75,517 square feet; Ralph R. Calder.
59 University Student Center Addition; 70,240 square feet; Ralph R. Calder.
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38 Sangren Hall 196,400 total square feet. (189,000 main building plus 
7,400 mechanical buildings in courtyard)

Named after Paul V. Sangren, Western's second 
president.

Architect:  L. C. Kingscott Associates
1998 remodel and entrance addition;  3,822 square 
feet;  Marshburn / Bunkley Associates, architects.  
Partial demolition in 2010 to enable construction of 

New Sangren Hall.
Total Building 199,502 square feet.

1965 71 North Valley Residence Halls 298,837 square feet.  Renamed Goldworth Valley Residence Hall after John 
Goldsworth.  

group #3 Architect:  Ralph R. Calder. Individual units named Eldridge, Fox, Harrison, and 
Stinson Halls.

 -  - Goldsworth Valley dedication.

44 Industrial and Engineering 
Technology Building 211,500 square feet.  Renamed Kohrman Hall in 1980 after George 

Kohrman.
Architect:  L.C. Kingscott Assoc.

1966 51 Home Management Building 3,558 square feet. Purchase of existing building, 2134 W. Michigan Ave.

1967 35 Distributive Education Building 15,000 square feet.  Renamed Trimpe Distributive Education Building after 
Adrian C. Trimpe.

Architect:  L.C. Kingscott and Assoc.

40 University Auditorium 169,565 square feet. Renamed Miller Auditorium in 1974 after President 
James. W. Miller.

Architect: O'Dell, Hewlett & Luckenbach.

1993 remodel and addition of bridge to parking ramp; 
4,639 square feet; Hobbs & Black Assoc., Inc. 

Total building 174,204 square feet.
41 Shaw Theatre 34,789 square feet. Named after Laura V. Shaw.  

Architect:  O'Dell, Hewlett & Luckenbach. Renamed Gilmore Theatre Complex in 1994.
Addition and remodel in 1994; 40,000 square feet; 

Tower Pinkster Titus Assoc., Inc. Dedicated November 30, 1994.

Total buildings 74,789 square feet.
42 Brown Hall 46,047 square feet.  Originally Liberal Arts Classroom Building.  

Architect:  O'Dell, Hewlett & Luckenbach. Named after William R. Brown.
43 Sprau Tower 39,097 square feet.  Also known as Sprau Office Tower.  

Architect:  O'Dell, Hewlett, & Luckenbach. Named after George Sprau.
61 Waldo Library Addition; 70,812 square feet; Ralph R. Calder.
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1968 78 Aviation Classroom Facility Addition; 17,756 square feet; Louis C. Kingscott 
Assoc., Inc. On Kilgore Road, near Kalamazoo Airport.

1969 52 Stadium Drive Apartments 161,200 square feet.  Additional units built in 1974.

200 units Architects:  Kingscott and Assoc., with Norman F. 
Carver, Jr.

Demolished in 2006.
55 Health Center 56,200 square feet. Also known as University Health Center.  

Architect:  L. C. Kingscott Assoc., Inc. Renamed Sindecuse Health Center in 1986-7 after 
Gordon and Elizabeth Sindecuse.

1996 remodel.

27 McCracken Hall Addition; 75,245 square feet; Kingscott and Assoc.

 -  - Extension of Oliver Street from Spindler Hall to 
Fieldhouse.

23 Walwood Place Residences By 1969 all the Walwood Place buildings were 
demolished.

24 Distributive Education Building Demolished in the 60s?
1970 77 Student Services Building 55,200 square feet.  Also known as University Student Services.  

Architect: Harley Ellington & Assoc., Inc. Renamed Faunce Student Services in 1978-9 after L. 
Dale Faunce.

80 Parking Structure #1 193,256 square feet.  Capacity:  580 cars
Engineer:  Carl Walker & Assoc., Inc.

Structural repairs in 2007.
56 Rood Hall 124,418 square feet.  Named after Paul Rood.

Architect:  O'Dell, Hewlett, & Luckenbach.
57 Everett Tower 30,450 square feet.  Named after John P. Everett.

Architect:  O'Dell, Hewlett & Luckenbach.

1971 67 Friedmann Hall 63,687 square feet.  Built as part of Instructional Facility Complex #1, with 
Dunbar and Knauss Halls.  

Architect:  Harley Ellington Cowin & Stirton, Inc.   
General Contractor:  Miller-Davis Co. Named after Robert Friedmann.

68 Dunbar Hall Goldsworth Valley dedication. Built as part of Instructional Facility Complex #1, with 
Friedmann and Knauss Hall.  

75,449 square feet.  Architect:  Harley Ellington Cowin
& Stirton, Inc.   General Contractor:  Miller-Davis Co. Named after Willis F. Dunbar.
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69 Knauss Hall 26,158 square feet.  Built as part of Instructional Facility Complex #1, with 
Friedmann and Dunbar Halls.  

Architect:  Harley Ellington Cowin & Stirton, Inc.   
General Contractor:  Miller-Davis Co. Named after James O. Knauss.

79 Aviation Storage Facility 3.973 square feet.  Addition to facilities on Kilgore Road, near Kalamazoo 
Airport.

Contractor:  Dosca-Smith

1972  -  - 

Start of project to extend Howard Street from Stadium 
Dr. to West Main St., and close off West Michigan 

Ave. between Wood Hall and Seibert Administration 
Building.

1973 90 University Stores Property purchase.  Built in 1957.   Originally a Harding's Market.  
10,078 square feet.

Remodel and addition 1987; 18,522 square feet; 
Kingscott Assoc., Inc.  

Dedicated as Robert A. Welborn Printing Management 
Center March 25, 1988. 

Total building 28,600 square feet. Also known as Welborn Hall.

47 Moore Hall Remodeled for use as administrative and faculty 
offices.

1974 93 Presidential Residence Purchase.  7,832 square feet. 1201 Short Road.  
Remodeled at various times Replaces The Oaklands as Presidential Residence.

53 The Oaklands Remodeled.
52 Stadium Drive Apartments 78,846 square feet.  Also know as Married Student Housing.

102 units Architect:  Kingscott and Assoc.

53 Recreation Building 103,000 square feet.  Renamed Lawson Ice Arena and Gabel Natatorium 
after Harry W. Lawson and Edward A. Gabel.

The Osborn Engineering Co., with Kellogg & Kiefer, 
Inc., architects.

50 Kanley Running Track also designated as #106
Track facility constructed on Kanley Park to replace 

cinder track in Waldo Stadium, removed during 
renovation.

1975 15 Waldo Stadium Additional seats raised total to 25,000.   AstroTurf 
installed.  

Osborn Engineering Co., and Kellog & Kiefer, 
Architects.

property Asylum Lake Farm Asylum Lake property acquired by property transfer 
from State of Michigan.

The former Colony Farm had been part of the 
Kalamazoo State Psychiatric Hospital since 1958.
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1976 20 Aviation Test Cell 1,064 square feet. Addition to facilities on Kilgore Road,  near Kalamazoo 
Airport.

Constructed by Bill Hamill, Jr., WMU Facilities 
Director

1977 property Colony Farm Colony Farm property acquired by property transfer 
from State.

The former Colony Farm had been part of the 
Kalamazoo State Psychiatric Hospital since 1958.

also called Orchard Farm

58 Ellsworth Hall Remodeled for use as administrative and faculty 
offices.

1978

1979 34 Knollwood Metal Building 2,880 square feet.  Demolished 2008. Storage, foundry and kilns for ceramics and sculpture 
programs.  

Architect:  Kingscott and Assoc. Also known as Knollwood Art Annex.

103 Ebert Field Constructed in the late 70's. Named after Fran Ebert, first women's basketball and 
softball coach.  .

Dedicated in June, 1985

1980 70 Public Safety Annex Purchase of residential house. 3,072 square feet. Also used as construction offices for Wood and 
Haenicke Hall project.

 Demolished 1999.
1981
1982 82 Dorothy U. Dalton Center 157,340 square feet.  Also known as Fine Arts Building.  

Architect:  Harley Ellington Pierce Yee Assoc., Inc. Named after Dorothy U. Dalton.

1983 17 Linda Richards Building Property transfer from State (Kalamazoo Psychiatric 
Hospital).   

Re-acquired by State in 1992 for the MSU Kalamazoo 
Center for Medical Studies.  

 Built 1931. Dedicated as University Medical and Health Science 
Center on May 7, 1995.

Addition  and remodel in 1992; Diekema/Hamann and 
Assoc. 

 Remodel of 3rd and 4th floors for WMU's Unified 
Clinics; 36,318 square feet; Kingscott and Assoc., 

architects

18 HOI Building Property transfer from State (Kalamazoo Psychiatric 
Hospital). Primary use storage (surplus).

Built 1921.  
21,840 square feet. 
 Demolished 1999.
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19 Montague House Property transfer from State (Kalamazoo Psychiatric 
Hospital).    Named after 19th-century abolitionist Henry Montague

Built 1861 ?
5,425 square feet.

84 Fetzer Development Center 46,288 square feet.  Named after John E. Fetzer.
also called Fetzer Center Architect:  Ellis Naeyaert Genheimer Assoc., Inc.

1984

1985 27 McCracken Hall Addition and remodeling of Paper Pilot Plant;        
8,950 square feet; Kingscott and Assoc., architects

1986 23 Salt / Sand Storage 3,684 square feet.  
Contractor:  Holland Construction Co.

79 Aviation Storage Facility Alterations
1987 22 Campus Services Building 34,150 square feet.  

Architect:  Kingscott and Assoc., Inc.              
Contractor:  Johnson-Klien

90 Welborn Hall Remodel and addition; 18,522 square feet; 
Diekema/Hamann.

Dedicated as Robert A. Welborn Printing Management 
Center in 1988.

1988 29 Maybee Hall Demolished.
51 Home Management Building Demolished.

94 Grand Rapids Regional Center Purchase.  Remodeled.  38,075 square feet.  Grand Rapids Continuing Education programs.   Now 
known as The Graduate Center - Beltline.  

Architect: Robert Lee Wold & Assoc., Inc. Dedicated on September 21, 1990.

1989 59 Bernhard Center Addition;  1,300 square feet; Robert Lee Wold & 
Assoc., Inc.

15 Waldo Stadium Renovation and additional seats to total of 30,000.
1990 13 Telecommunication building 1,291 square feet. Part of Antenna Farm.

189 WMUK Satellite - off-campus 1,200 square feet.  Upgrade, new antenna 2003. WMUK communications facility and antenna in 
Richland, Michigan.

24 Lee Honors College 9,128 square feet. Named after Carl and Winifred Lee.  
 Architect:  DeWinter. Dedicated October 12, 1990.

1991 8 Spindler Hall Remodel; Hobbs & Black Assoc., Inc.
25 Safety and Security Demolished Former Arcadia Brook Clubhouse.
26 Hillside Buildings Demolished Former Hillside Apartments.
29 University Computer Center 62,606 square feet.  Building dedication on April 24, 1992.

Architect:  WBDC Group.  Contractor:  Reinke and 
Sons

51 Public Safety Purchase.  18,123 square feet.  Built 1966 ? Also known as 511 Monroe.
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61 Waldo Library Renovation and addition;                        
104,672 square feet;  WBDC Group, architects Dedicated April 24, 1992.  

Rare Book Room renovated by Hobbs & Black 
Assoc., Inc.

Renovation included connection to University 
Computer Center and Charles and Mary Stuart Clock 

Tower.  
83 College of Business 173,700 square feet.  Dedicated October 11, 1991.  

Architect:  Luckenbach Ziegelman and Partners, Inc. Renamed Schneider Hall in 1993, after Arnold E. 
Schneider.

85 Gilmore House  15,993 square feet.  Used for meetings and hospitality.  
Also known as Gilmore Alumni House.

1992 10 Walwood Hall Renovation; Hobbs & Black Assoc., Inc.

17 Linda Richards Building Building returned to state.  Addition and renovation; 
Diekema/Hamann Architects, Inc.

Home to Kalamazoo Center for Medical Studies 
(Michigan State University programs) and WMU's 

Unified Clinics. 
 Building renamed University Medical and Health 

Sciences Center.
95 Kendall Center Acquired 1992-93; 38,500 square feet. Named after Beulah L. and Roy F. Kendall.  

Remodeled 1993 Building dedication on July 1, 1993.
50 Kanley Track Construction of building.  4,077 square feet. Kanley Track also designated as 106.
15 Waldo Stadium PAT turf installation

1993 40 Miller Auditorium Remodel plus addition to connect with parking ramp; 
4,639 square feet; Hobbs & Black Assoc., Inc.

81 Parking Structure #2 363,420 square feet. Capacity:  1138 cars.
Architect:  Hobbs & Black Assoc., Inc.  Contractor:  

Miller-Davis
Structural Engineer:  Walker Parking Consultants-

Engineers Inc.

1994 2 Power Plant Property transfer from State (Kalamazoo Regional 
Psychitric Hospital).      Named Robert M. Beam Power Plant in 2007.

Built 1925? Dedicated in 2007.
28,000 square feet. 
Remodeled in 1958.

Remodeled 1997.  Contractor:  Cummins and 
Barnard, Inc.

53 Lawson-Gabel Roof replacement and ice rink renovation.

15 Waldo Stadium Remodel - addition of sub-station; Eckert-Wordell 
Architects.
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17 University Medical and Health 
Services Center

Remodeled  3rd and 4th floors;   36,318 square feet; 
Kingscott Associates, architects. Home to WMU's Unified Clinics.

Dedication  of UMHSC and WMU's Unified Clinics, 
May 7, 1995.

41 Gilmore Theatre Complex Addition to and remodel of Shaw Theatre;          
40,000 square feet; Tower Pinkster Titus Assoc., Inc. Named after Irving S. Gilmore.  

Dedicated on November 30, 1994.

49 Student Recreation Center
Remodel and addition to Gary Center;             

84,500 square feet; Smith, Hinchman & Grylls Assoc., 
Inc.

Dedicated on August 29, 1994.

62 Read Fieldhouse and University 
Arena

Remodel and addition to Read Fieldhouse;         
20,900 square feet; Smith, Hinchman & Grylls Assoc., 

Inc.
University Arena dedicated on August 29, 1994.

86 St. Aidan's Chapel Acquired 1994; 7,502 square feet. Initially used for academic offices and program areas.  
Converted to Childrens' Place Day Care.  

Also known as the Childrens' Center.  Renamed 
Woodlawn Place in 2005.

1995 88 Parking Services 2,928 square feet. Formerly a National City Bank.

1996 15 Waldo Stadium and John Gill 
Clubhouse

East side renovation and addition; 19,134 square 
feet; Hobbs & Black Assoc., Inc.

John Gill Clubhouse and Press Box dedicated on April 
6, 1996.  Total of 36,000 seats.

140 Ernest Wilbur Building Built in 1960s Formerly known as the East Wing Building.
34,000 square feet.  Louis C. Kingscott and Assoc., 

architects Acquired from KRPH.

55 Sindecuse Health Center Remodel

1997 180 Administration & Flight 
Operations Acquired.  9,600 square feet. New School of Aviation Facilities in Battle Creek, 

Michigan.  
 Renovation.  Architect:  Tower Pinkster Titus Dedicated September 19, 1997.

181 Aviation Education Center 16,000 square feet.  New School of Aviation Facilities in Battle Creek, 
Michigan.  

Architect:  Tower Pinkster Titus. Dedicated September 19, 1997.

182 Aircraft Maintenance Center Acquired.  75,000 square feet.  New School of Aviation Facilities in Battle Creek, 
Michigan. 

Renovation.  Architect:  Tower Pinkster Titus  Dedicated September 19, 1997.
67 Friedman Hall Chiller Plant Construction of chiller plant.
44 Kohrman Hall Chiller Plant Construction of chiller plant and regional shop.
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2 Power Plant
Renovation and addition:  21,000 square feet.  

Contractor:  Cummins and Barnard, Inc.  Total 49,000 
square feet.

9 Oakland Recital Hall and Campus 
Cinema Remodel; Deikema / Hamann Architects, Inc. Also called The Theatre or The Little Theatre.  

Dedication of Campus Cinema on September 5, 1997.

1998 15 Waldo Stadium and Bill Brown 
Alumni Football Center

West side remodel and addition;                  
78,008 square feet; Tower Pinkster Titus Assoc., Inc.

Dedication of Bill Brown Alumni Football Center on 
July 10, 1998.

38 Sangren Hall
1998 north entrance remodel and entrance addition;  
3,822 square feet;  Marshburn / Bunkley Associates, 

architects.
36 Wood Hall Renovation;  Holabird and Root. Building dedication on April 24, 1998.

 -  - Property transfer from State (Kalamazoo Regional 
Psychiatric Hospital buildings and grounds). 

141 Activity Therapy Building Built in 1955; 38.149 square feet. Acquired from KRPH.

142 Laundry Building (KRPH) Built in 1916?; 30,680 square feet.  Demolished in 
2006? Acquired from KRPH.

179 Northwest Unit Acquired from the State in property transfer.  94,400 
square feet. Off-campus on Blakesley Street. 

Demolished in 2011. Formerly the Southwest Michigan Tuberculosis 
Sanatorium.

183 Simulated Flight Building Acquired.  14,000 square feet. College of Aviation, Battle Creek campus

184 Student Services - College of 
Aviation 16,000 square feet College of Aviation, Battle Creek campus

211 West Hills Athletic Club Acquired.  114,740 square feet.
1999 107 Haenicke Hall 108,586 square feet. Dedicated on April 23, 1999.

 Architect:  Holabird and Root.
18 HOI Demolished.

2000  -  - Parkview Campus created.
New College of Engineering building and  Business, 

Technology and Research Park located on the (former)
Lee Baker Farm.

 -  - Oakland Drive Campus
New sub-campus defined as area bounded by Oliver 
Street, Oakland Drive, Howard Street and Stadium 

Drive.
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250 The Arboretum Apartment 
complex

197,600 square feet.  Contractor:  American Village 
Builders;  Architect:  DesignPlus    Sold in 2005.

New construction of university off-campus housing.  
240 units; 688 beds.  Located on the Arboretum, or 

Basswoods, property.

2001 6 Oakland Gymnsium Demolished.  Façade saved, was incorporated into Seelye Athletic 
Center.

96 The Graduate Center - Downtown
Remodel and lease of facility on Cherry and Ionia 
Streets in Grand Rapids.  Architect:  DesignPlus;  

Contractor:  Rockford Construction

Expansion of WMU's Extended University Programs in 
Grand Rapids.  

15 Waldo Stadium NexTurf installation.

215 Energy Resource Center 12,100 square feet.  Constructor:  Armstrong Service, 
Inc. Located on the Parkview Campus.

2002 12 Brink Printing Services Demolished.

195 WMU Southwest 44,153 square feet.  New facility for Southwest Regional Center, Extended 
University Programs.     

Architect:  Marshburn/Bunkley Associates. Located on Lake Michigan College campus. 
Partnership with LMC to offer 4-yr undergraduate 

degree on-site.
Dedicated on October 25, 2002.

212 Paper Coating Pilot Plant 55,215 square feet.  Also known as Paper Technology Building.  .
Located on the Parkview Campus.

Architects:  HarleyEllis with Rosetti Architects. Dedicated on October 11, 2002
2003 6 Seelye Athletic Center 120,950 square feet.  Incorporates Oakland Gymnasium façade.

Design/build construction:  Kalleward and Associates 
with Eckert-Wordell Architects. Named for principle donor Donald "J" Seelye.

214 College of Engineering 343,000 square feet.  First classroom building on the Parkview Campus.
Architects: HarleyEllis with Rosetti Architects Dedicated on September 12, 2003.

First classes in Fall Semester, 2003.

216 East Parking Deck 227,688 square feet.  Structural Engineer:  Carl 
Walker Inc. On Parkview Campus; 662 cars.

217 West Parking Deck 147,496 square feet.  Structural Engineer:  Carl 
Walker Inc. On Parkview Campus; 409 cars.

2004  -  - West Entrance Development:  roundabout and West 
Michigan Entrance boulevard.

142 Laundry Building (KRPH) Demolished.

2005 145 College of Health and Human 
Services

190,667 square feet.  Central Services Building 
(connected):  43,713 square feet.

First classroom and office building to house entire 
College of Health and Human Services.  

Architect:  SmithGroup Inc. First WMU classroom building constructed on Oakland 
Drive Campus.
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250 Arboretum Apartment Complex Sold in 2005.

2006 114 Chemistry Instructional Facility 83,331 square feet. Dedicated: January 26, 2007
Architect:  Holabird and Root

52 Stadium Drive Apartments Demolition of 200 units built in 1969.

55 Sindecuse Health Center Renovation of first floor and pharmacy.  Architect:  
Architecture One Inc.

15 Waldo Stadium Installation of FieldTurf
50 / 106 Kanley Track New bleachers

53 Lawson Ice Arena Renovation of lower level.

102 Sorenson Courts and lower level 
tennis courts Sorenson Courts rebuilt On-going work on site and lower tennis courts in 2007 

and 2008.

103 Ebert Field Renovation of field and facilities; new bleachers, 
fencing, press box and field surface.

207 MGRRE Core Lab Leased and remodeled in 2006.  30,786 square feet. Michigan Geological Repository for Research and 
Education

2007 116 Richmond Center for Visual Arts 52,517 square feet.
Building naming approved by WMU Board of trustees 
on December 12, 2003, named after James W. and 

Lois I. Richmond.  
Architect:  SmithGroup Inc. Dedicated:  April 7, 2007

2 Robert M. Beam Power Plant Dedicated and formally named after Robert M. Beam.

118 South Kohrman Hall 91,358 square feet Renamed and designated as a separate building from 
Kohrman Hall.

Architect:  SmithGroup Inc. Renovated to house the School of Art.

66 Goldsworth Valley Apartments 
units Y and Z

Demolished as part of project to renovate and update 
tennis courts.

2008 42 Brown Hall Addition of 12,211 square feet.  Total building 58,258 
square feet. State Capital Outlay Project renovation.

Architect:  TMP Associates, Inc.

16 Robert J. Bobb Stadium Hyames Field renamed. Construction / renovation started in 2008, completed in 
2010.  Dedication on May 14, 2011.

34 Knollwood Metal Building Demolished.
39 Knollwood Building Demolished.

2009 58 Bernhard Center
Renovation of former Henry Hall Dining Room and 

construction of north-south public corridor.  Architect: 
Architecture One Inc.
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2010 38 Sangren Hall Partial demolition to enable construction of New 
Sangren Hall - 31,406 s.f.  Architect:  SHW Group

KPH12 Noble Lodge Acquired from KRPH.  27,000 square feet.

2011 179 Northwest Unit Scheduled for demolition. Ownership relinquished to city of Kalamazoo.  
Approved by Board of Trustees on April 8, 2011.

3xx Western View Apartments Design-build:  American Village Builders Campus apartments.  Phase one of planned two 
phases.  About 300 beds.

 

Chronology rev2011 19


